
 

Asset Management Meeting Minutes 

 
Tuesday, May 27, 2025, 5:30 pm 

Council Chambers 
Municipal Administration Building 

285 Beech Hill Road 
Beech Hill, NS B2G 0B4 

 
Present were: Deputy Warden John Dunbar (Chair) 

Warden Nicholas MacInnis 
Councillor Mary MacLellan 
Councillor Richelle MacLaughlin 
Councillor Adam Baden-Clay 
Councillor Shawn Brophy  
Councillor Wayne Melanson 
Councillor Gary Mattie 
Councillor Harris McNamara 
Councillor Sterling Garvie 

  
Regrets: None 
  
Staff Present: Shirlyn Donovan, CAO 
 Beth Schumacher, Deputy Clerk 
 Allison Duggan, Director of Finance 
 Tammy Feltmate, Director of Sustainable Communities (by Zoom) 
 Daryl Myers, Director of Public Works (by Zoom) 
  
Others Present: Gallery 
 Paul Colton, Director, Eastern District 
 Basil Pitts, Area Manager, Antigonish Guysborough 
 Andrew MacPherson, Construction Manager, Eastern District 

Call to Order – Deputy Warden Dunbar 

The meeting of the Asset Management Committee was called to order by Chair, Deputy 
Warden Dunbar, at 5:31pm. 

Approval of Agenda  

Deputy Warden Dunbar called for any additions or deletions to the agenda.   

Moved and Seconded 

That the agenda be approved as presented. 

Motion Carried 



 

May 27, 2025 Asset Management Committee Minutes  2 

In-Camera Items 

There were no in-camera items. 

Approval of April 22, 2025 Asset Management Committee Minutes 

Deputy Warden Dunbar called for any errors or omissions in the Asset Management 
minutes of April 22, 2025.   

Moved and Seconded 

That the Asset Management Committee meeting minutes of April 22, 2025 be 
approved as presented. 

Motion Carried 

Business Arising from the Minutes 

There was no business arising from the minutes.  
 
Delegations 

Nova Scotia Department of Public Works 

Mr. Pitts, Mr. Colton, and Mr. MacPherson all introduced themselves.  Mr. 
MacPherson provided an overview of several construction updates that are 
underway: 

• Church St. Roundabout – tender closed, expecting work to start in a couple of 
weeks 

• Repaving portion of Highway 337 underway 

• Bridge work in Lakevale will be completed this summer 

• Bridge work in James River underway 

• Pitchers Farm Road, Meadow Green Road, Glenroy Road getting gravel 

• Addington Forks Road – repaving work planned 

• Bridges and culverts were reviewed 

• Brierly Brook and Dunmore Road – chipseal work planned 

• Work in Aulds Cove is planned to be completed and the intersection open 
during the first week of June. 

Councillors were then given the chance to ask questions of the NSDPW team.  
Councillor Brophy brought up locations where he though that guardrails might be 
helpful, as well as areas where shoulders are being eroded that could be of concern.  
A question was also asked about whether “share the road” signs could be installed in 
near Route 245, and the NSDPW team noted they would look to see what could be 
done under the policy regarding signage.   

Councillor McNamara noted that he has a petition that was provided to him from 
residents in his district regarding Old Wharf Road, which is an agenda item later in 
tonight’s meeting.  Repaving, ditching, and culverts were all noted as concerns that 
were raised.   



 

May 27, 2025 Asset Management Committee Minutes  3 

Councillor MacLaughlin noted that she receives a lot of calls from residents regarding 
road conditions and was looking for clarification about the best way to communicate 
resident concerns with the NSDPW team.  Mr. Pitts reviewed the different 
maintenance programs that gravel roads fall in for clarification on how those roads 
are prioritized for repairs.  He noted that he takes the priorities list provided by 
Council each year to help inform his planning for the maintenance budget for local 
roads. 

Councillor Baden-Clay asked about ditching along Highway 337 as the roadway has 
sections repaved, and gravelling/ditching along The Landing.  Mr. Pitts noted that it is 
a K-Class Road, and Mr. Colton noted that some work had been done and cost-
shared with the Municipality in the past.  Councillor Baden-Clay asked for clarification 
regarding the NSDPW position to move away from chip-sealing gravel roads, and Mr. 
Colton spoke to past practice and policy.   

Councillor Garvie asked about stop signs and culverts in his district.  Councillor 
Mattie asked for an update regarding the intersection with Trunk 4 and Route 16, and 
brush cutting in front of the Baptist Church on Route 16.  He also raised a concern 
with culverts on the East Tracadie Road.  Councillor MacLellan shared concerns 
raised with the Marsh Road, and the McArras Brook / Dunmaglass Road that the 
committee received a presentation on late last year.  Mr. Pitts noted that gravel work 
is expected on that last mentioned roadway this summer.      

Councillor Melanson asked for an update on replacement of the streetlight at the 
intersection of Highway 104 and the Pomquet River Road.  Mr. Pitts noted that any 
lighting and signals are done through Halifax and he would follow-up for an update.  
Councillor Melanson also noted a concern that there was no street signs at the 
Pomquet Point Road / Pomquet Point One Road intersection causing confusion and 
delay with deliveries and EHS.  He also noted a concern with a bridge in his district. 

Deputy Warden Dunbar asked for clarification regarding the planned work on the 
Meadow Green Road, and the NSDPW team noted that the planned work was from 
the Pomquet River Road in 4.5km.  Deputy Warden Dunbar asked about ruts in the 
Bayfield Beach Road and asked about paving a specific gravel road in his district.  
He also asked if the province had any plans to twin Highway 104 between Paqtnkek 
and the Causeway.  Deputy Warden Dunbar asked for the NSDPW team to share 
information about the area supervisors for Councillors to have as well.   

The team from NSDPW were thanked for their time. 

Continuing Business 

There was no continuing business. 

New Business 

Resident Petition Regarding the Repair of Old Wharf Road 

Councillor McNamara raised a concern with the condition of Old Wharf Road, which 
he has received a petition regarding.  He requested that the County write a letter to 



 

May 27, 2025 Asset Management Committee Minutes  4 

Greg Morrow and ask that the concerns that have been identified for this roadway be 
addressed by the Province.     

Moved and Seconded 

The Asset Management Committee recommends that Municipal Council send a 
letter to the Minister of the Nova Scotia Department of Public Works as well as 
Minister Morrow raising concerns with the condition of Old Wharf Road. 

Motion Carried 

Renaming of a Private Lane – Tonys Lane, Doctor’s Brook 

Ms. Schumacher spoke to a proposal to rename a private roadway off of Highway 245 
and the Road to the Rocks to Tony’s Lane.  For the benefit of the newer councillors, 
she gave an overview of the content of the petition that was attached to the staff memo.   

Moved and Seconded 

The Asset Management Committee recommends that Municipal Council renames 
the private laneway off Highway 245 in Doctor’s Brook, as shown on the attached 
map, to “Tony’s Lane”. 

Motion Carried 

Terra Tory Drive Water Line 

Councillor Baden-Clay spoke to a request from residents along Terra Tory Drive, who 
have requested to bring a private waterline off of municipal water, who are requesting 
that the municipality cover the cost of the water shut-off valves.  Mrs. Donovan read 
the proposed motion that Councillor Baden-Clay circulated to Council late on Friday.   

Mrs. Donovan provided further details about the proposal before the committee for 
consideration and noted that staff is recommending that the full cost of the private 
services be borne by the residents looking to connect to the private service.  Councillor 
Brophy asked for clarification from Mr. Myers regarding a similar situation that 
happened in his district.  Mr. Myers noted that with other projects, those constructing 
private services are responsible for the cost of equipment, but the municipality has 
provided the necessary shut-off valve and standpipe equipment to them at cost.    

Concerns were raised by councillors regarding covering costs for equipment on a 
private line.  The residents that are looking for connections to this water service would 
be subject to the local improvements by-law charge for the Highway 337 Waterline 
Extension Project. 

Moved and Seconded 

The Asset Management Committee recommends that Municipal Council approve 
the purchase of 3 x ¾” curb stops (water shut off valves) for the households at 
the entrance to Terra Tory Drive to assist them with connecting to municipal 
water supply . 

Motion Defeated 



 

May 27, 2025 Asset Management Committee Minutes  5 

Additions to the Agenda  

There were no additions to the agenda. 

Adjournment 

Moved 

That the Asset Management Committee meeting be adjourned at 6:41pm. 

Motion Carried 

 
 

   

Deputy Warden John Dunbar  Shirlyn Donovan, CAO 

 


